Town of Carbondale
511 Colorado Avenue
Carbondale, CO 81623

AGENDA
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION
THURSDAY, December 10, 2020
7:00 P.M. Virtual Meeting *

1. CALL TO ORDER
2. ROLL CALL

3. 7:00 p.m. —7:05 p.m.
Minutes of the September 10, 2020 MEELING. .......ovieeeineiiieie e Attachment A

4. 7:05p.m.—7:10 p.m.
Minutes of the November 19, 2020 meeting............coovviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinee e, Attachment B

5. 7:10 pm. - 7:15 p.m.
Resolution 8 of 2020 — 2010 Eastbank Point/Minor Site Plan & CUP .................. Attachment C

6. 7:15p.m.—-7:20 p.m.
Public Comment for Persons not on the agenda (See instructions below)

7. 7:20 p.m. —8:50 p.m.
Virtual HEARING — Major Site Plan Review, Subdivision Exemptlon Conditional Use
Permits............ .. Attachment D
Apphcant Carbondale Center Place LLC
Location: 900-958 Highway 133 and 1201 Colorado Avenue (Sopris Shopping Center and Sopris
Self- Storage

8. 8:50 p.m. — 8:55 p.m.
Staff Update

9. 8:55p.m.—-9:00 p.m.
Commissioner Comments

10. 9:00 p.m. — ADJOURN
*Please note all times are approx.
ATTENTION: Due to the continuing threat of the spread of the COVID-19 Virus, all regular Carbondale

P & Z Meetings will be conducted virtually. If you have a comment concerning one or more of the Agenda
items please email jleybourne@carbondaleco.net by 4:00 pm on December 10, 2020.

If you would like to comment during the meeting please email jleybourne@carbondaleco.net with your full
name and address by 4:00 pm on December 10, 2020. You will receive instructions on joining the meeting
online prior to 7:00 p.m. Also, you may contact_jlevbourne@carbondaleco.net to get a phone number to
listen to the meeting, however, you will be unable to make comments.

Upcoming P & Z Meetings:
1-14-2021 — Thompson Park — Preliminary and Final Plat
Carbondale Center Place — Continued from 12-10-2020



mailto:jleybourne@carbondaleco.net
mailto:jleybourne@carbondaleco.net

9/10/20

MINUTES
CARBONDALE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
Thursday September 10, 2020

Commissioners Present: Staff Present:

Michael Durant, Chair Janet Buck, Planning Director
Ken Harrington, Vice-Chair John Leybourne, Planner

Jay Engstrom Mary Sikes, Planning Assistant
Jeff Davlyn

Nick Miscione

Commissioners Absent:

Marina Skiles

Jade Wimberley

Nicholas DiFrank (15t Alternate)
Erica Stahl Golden (2" Alternate)

Other Persons Present Virtually

Doug Pratte

Rob Cairncross

Jordan Sarnick

Yancy Nichol, Engineer

Andrea Korber, Architect, 57 Village Lane

The meeting was called to order at 7:01 p.m. by Michael Durant.

August 27, 2020 Minutes:
Jeff made a motion to approve the August 27, 2020 minutes. Jay seconded the motion
and they were approved unanimously.

Public Comment — Persons Present Not on the Agenda
There were no persons present to speak on a non-agenda item.

CONTINUED VIRTUAL HEARING — Annexation, Rezoning, Major Site Plan Review,
Conditional Use Permit and Vested Rights

Location: 0430 Highway 133

Applicant: Eastwood 133, LLC

Janet said that this is a continued public hearing for the Eastwood Annexation.

Janet stated that the first hearing was on August 13", She said at that meeting she
went over the Comprehensive Plan, the Annexation criteria, and the proposed rezoning.
She said that the applicant presented the proposed project to the Planning Commission.
She continued by saying that the Commission opened the public hearing for public
comment. She stated that the hearing was then continued to August 27,

1|Page



9/10/20

Janet said at that meeting she went through compliance with the UDC. She stated that
the Commission opened the public hearing for public comment. She said that after
discussion, the Commission continued the hearing to tonight and directed Staff to
prepare conditions of approval.

Janet said that she recommends approval of the application. She stated that the
proposed development would provide enhancements to the entryway to the Town,
including the landscape and artwork along Highway 133. She said that in a number of
areas, the proposal exceeds the requirements of the UDC, with the landscaped areas
around the development, larger setbacks, and the reduced height. She said that the
buildings look nice with the garage doors screened. She stated that the proposal is for a
net zero building.

Nick asked if the land use application had changed.

Janet explained that it is basically the same design with a few updates to the public
outreach. She said that tonight they will show a video and explain their fine tuning.

Ken asked if Janet had time to look at the traffic study.

Janet said that she did but that she relies on the Public Work Director to review it as she
is not a traffic expert. She said that we just got the study last week and there hasn’t
been time for him to review it carefully. She said there will be an internal review before it
goes to the Board.

Nick asked if they were required to submit lighting specifications as part of the lighting
plan.

Janet said that we get the specifications when it goes to the building permit. She said
what we look at right now is the trespass to make sure the lighting doesn’t go over the
property line.

Jay asked about condition and timing on the closure for the driveway for the tire store.
He asked if there would be a deadline to relocate it.

Janet said that she would call the new control access control guy from CDOT and have
a conversation with him to verify this condition.

Ken suggested maybe rewording that condition, CDOT’s anticipated closing. He said
that we talked about this happening when the property was redeveloped. He asked if
CDOT controls the closing or does the owner control it.

Janet said that CDOT does.

Ken asked if CDOT could close the driveway even if they do not redevelop.

2|Page



9/10/20

Janet said that they have to submit a highway access permit application and that Yancy
can explain.

Ken said that this seems like a requirement that we are placing on the applicant that
they cannot control.

Janet said that this condition can be taken out but that she would still be following up so
that the owner of the tire store is aware of what is happening.

Michael said that he heard at the last meeting that the tire store would not have to close
their driveway unless they were going to redevelop. He said now we are hearing that
CDOT can take their driveway away.

Janet said that Yancy can explain with the applicant’s presentation because he is the
one doing the Highway Access permit application.

Ken said that he doesn’t want to burden the applicant with actions that are beyond their
control.

Doug Pratt stated that they do have a video and a couple of discussion points that we
would like to respond to for clarification for the group. He said that we have gone
through the conditions of approval and worked hand in hand with Janet to through all
these items. He said that we have made progress on some of the items, but we were
hoping to update everything in one piece, so the application is updated in one process
when it goes to the Board. He said that many of them are due to Janet by September 24
and that they are conditions that the Board deals with, so they are appropriate as
conditions. He said that this is an overview of support for Staff's recommendations for
approval with conditions. He said that Yancy can clarify further with regards to the
closure of the access to the north. He said that he can talk about the referral comment
from CDOT.

Doug said that we do have an updated video that Andi put together that he can share
from his screen. He said it will be a good wrap-up of the project.

Yancy explained the summary of the traffic study and timing of the closure of the
driveway to the north. He said that the referral comments that we got from CDOT
already answer condition #9, which states that when the property redevelops that would
trigger that closure. He said that we are preparing the formal application with the traffic
study. He said the condition would be that before we can get the final site plan approval,
that we will have an Access Permit. He said that typically under the Access Code that
as long as we are complying with the Access Control Plan, which we are with the
easement we are setting up to the north, it will work as the plan is indicated. He said as
long as there is no conflict with the existing access and ours that CDOT will not ask the
property owner to the north to close their driveway because of our project. He said that
it would only be related to his redevelopment. He said that if there is a highway upgrade
that they can do it with a CDOT project but not from a neighbor developing and close

3|Page



9/10/20

another neighbor’s driveway. He said that they will get more clarification through the
application process with CDOT.

Doug said that the Access Permit application we will be putting together with CDOT to
proceed will give some clarification in that application as Yancy said.

Michael asked if Yancy’s explanation answered everyone'’s question. He said it's what
he took from the last meeting and that he just wanted to make sure everyone was clear
on this.

Commissioners were all good.

Doug shared his screen to present the video wrapping around the building and said that
it was an overview of the project. He said that they will be updating the lighting plan.

Michael said that the lighting is a building code issue.

Jeff asked if the screening of the substation was what will happen with the development.
Andi explained that what they have now a chain-link fence with vertical wood strapped
to the outside. She said that the model was just trying to show that there was a wood

fence around the substation but that we are not proposing to change the fence.

Doug said that some of this project will help screen the substation just by what is being
proposed.

Ken asked if there were any of the nineteen conditions outlined in the Staff report with
the exception of #9, that the applicant has issue with.

Doug said that they were comfortable working with the Town and that they will work with
CDOT with the Access Permit and that we know that it is required to move forward with
this project. He said that we are comfortable with the recommendations and that we
have been working hand in hand with Janet, so we are good.

Public Comments

There were no members of the public to comment.
Motion to close the comment portion of the public hearing

Ken made the motion to close the comment portion of the public hearing. Jay seconded
the motion, and it was approved unanimously.

Commissioner Comments

Ken said that any concerns that we had were addressed from the first two meetings and
that he did not think there was a need for condition #9. He suggested a header above the
conditions as a format change. He said that he thought it was a good application.

4|Page



9/10/20

Jay said that his only issue was with #9 as well and that he agrees with Ken that it just
makes sense to remove it. He said other than that he thinks the application is great.

Nick said that he has no comments and that it was a nice project.

Jeff said that his only comment would be that the turn-ins were imperfect but that we have
limited control over that. He said that he appreciates being able to visualize the future use
and that it is a good project, and he has appreciated the process the whole way.

Michael said that he is on board with Ken and that #9 doesn’t serve us with any purpose.
Motion

Ken made a motion to recommend approval of the Annexation, Rezoning, Major Site Plan
Review, Conditional Use Permit and Vested Rights with the findings and conditions in the
Staff report with the exception of condition #9. Nick seconded the motion, and it was
approved unanimously.

Yes: Nick, Ken, Jay, Jeff, Michael
No: None
Michael thanked the applicants and wished them luck with the Trustees.

Staff Update

Janet said that it has been busy and that the building permits keep coming in. She said
that Mary said that there were nine coming in from RVR and that there was a lot of
construction going on.

Janet said that as far as land-use applications coming in that this application would be
moving on to the Board in September and October.

Janet said that she would be having a pre-application meeting with Carbondale Center
Place in a few weeks. She said that they will be working towards submitting a Major Site
Plan Review and Subdivision application.

Janet said that we do not have anything scheduled for the September 24 meeting so we
could talk about canceling if the Commission agreed.

John said that it has been very busy as well.

John said that he and John Plano red tagged the Miser’s building for remodeling without
a permit this morning.

Mary said that as fast as she gets the rolls of plans off of her desk it fills up again. She
said that she did get an email that in the next four weeks that there were nine houses
going before the design review committee in RVR.

Janet said that Thompson Park was trying to finish up the affordable units and that they
want to start on Parcels 3 and 4. She said that they wanted to know if they can start pulling
permits before Subdivision approval and that she said no. She said that improvements
need to be completed and it has to be subdivided.

Further discussion ensued about the real estate market.
The Commission agreed to cancel the September 24 meeting.

5|Page



9/10/20

Commissioner Comments

There were no Commissioner comments.

Motion to Adjourn

A motion was made by Ken to adjourn. Jeff seconded the motion, and the meeting was
adjourned at 7:38 p.m.

6|Page



11/19/20

MINUTES
CARBONDALE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
Thursday November 19, 2020

Commissioners Present: Staff Present:

Marina Skiles Janet Buck, Planning Director
Jade Wimberley John Leybourne, Planner
Nicholas DiFrank (15t Alternate) Mary Sikes, Planning Assistant

Erica Stahl Golden (2" Alternate)
Jay Engstrom
Jeff Davlyn

Commissioners Absent:
Michael Durant, Chair
Nick Miscione

Other Persons Present Virtually
Damien Webster
Bruce Stolbach

The meeting was called to order at 7:02 p.m. by Janet Buck.

Jade nominated Jeff as Chair for tonight’s meeting and Nicholas seconded it, the other
members were unanimous.

September 10, 2020 Minutes:
The minutes were tabled as there were only two members present today that were at the
September 10, 2020 meeting.

Public Comment — Persons Present Not on the Agenda
There were no persons present to speak on a non-agenda item

VIRTUAL HEARING - Minor Site Plan and Conditional Use Permit
Location: 2010 Eastbank Point
Applicant: Damien Webster/Desiree Rothchild

John said that this is an application for a Minor Site Plan Review and Conditional Use
Permit. He stated that the Commission is required to hold a public hearing and approve
the application, deny it or continue the public hearing.

John stated that the applicant is proposing to renovate a portion of the basement into an

accessory dwelling unit (ADU). He said that this renovation will only require internal
changes to the structure and an external stairway leading to the unit in the basement.

1|Page



11/19/20

John said that an ADU is allowed to be up to 850 square feet and a minimum of 300
square feet, the proposed ADU is 789 square feet in size.

John stated that the required setbacks in the R/LD zone district have been met.

John said that the allowed maximum impervious surface has been met with the main
dwelling being constructed.

John continued by saying that Section 5.8.3. of the UDC requires 2.5 parking spaces for
the main dwelling, and 2 spaces for an ADU. He said that the applicant has indicated
that there are 5 spaces.

John stated that the proposed changes are internal and do not affect the building
exterior.

Jay asked for clarification that the that the hallway in the basement was open to the
main part of the house.

John stated that there was a door on the second level at the top of the stairs.
Jay asked if there was a firewall between the lower and upper levels.

John said that would be addressed with the building permit.

Janet said that the firewall would only apply if it was a condo.

Jeff asked if there was an HOA.

John said not that we are aware of.

Bruce stated that these homes were built when he was the Building Inspector and that
he didn’t think there was an HOA either.

Damien stated that there was no HOA.
Jay said that in the packet he only can see four parking spaces.
John said that the fifth parking space was in the garage.

Bruce Stolbach introduced himself and said that he was the draftsman and code
consultant helping Damien and Desiree to meet code and check lists.

Damien Webster introduced himself and said that he’s a carpenter and a cabinet
installer and that he will be doing the project, aside from some plumbing and electrical.
He said that their project was straightforward and a way to add a bedroom for the town
and people that need places to live.

2|Page



11/19/20

Bruce said that we complied with regulations and we went through the checklists,
working with both of the John’s. He said that the report says that John recommends
approval.

Jade asked which direction is the stairway to the ADU and was it covered. She asked
about the drainage in the stairwell.

Damien stated that it was on the east side of the house on the outside.
Bruce said that the treads of the stairs would be open for snow.

Damien said that there would be a drywell for drainage.

Mariana asked if the drywell would daylight somewhere else on the property.

Damien explained that there would be a hole with gravel for the drywell located in the
stairwell.

John Leybourne explained that our storm sewer system in Carbondale also uses
drywells and that they filter straight down.

Public Comments

There were no members of the public to comment.
Motion to close the comment portion of the public hearing

Jay made the motion to close the comment portion of the public hearing. Mariana
seconded the motion, and it was approved unanimously.

Commissioner Comments

Marina applauded the applicant and said that this was a pretty easy sell as the footprint
is not changing. She thanked the applicant for contributing to helping with our housing
crisis.

Jeff commented that the stairwell was an external addition to access the ADU.
Janet explained that the old code, prior to 2016, addressed entrances in the standards.
Marina asked if there was anything codified for short term rentals.

John said that currently the only requirement was that a short-term rental have a lodging
tax license.

Damien said that they have no intention of doing short term rentals and that they want a
nice quiet person for a long-term rental.

Erica asked if the existing bedroom in the lower right-hand corner is part of this rental.
Damien said that is the bedroom.

Erica asked if there was an egress window.

Damien said that there was, it’s just not shown.

3|Page



11/19/20

Damien said that there is also two windows and a window well where the stairs are going
too.

Jeff said that it was nice to see the neighborly support in the packet.
Nicholas said that it was a clean application.

Bruce said that they had planned on doing the building permit and land use application
simultaneously but John Plano said that he wanted this approval first so he wasn'’t
spending time on plans that wouldn’t be approved.

Motion

Mariana made a motion to approve the Minor Site Plan Review and Conditional Use
Permit for and Accessory Dwelling Unit to be located at 2010 Eastbank Point with
conditions 1-4 in the Staff Report. Nicholas seconded the motion, and it was approved
unanimously.

Election of Vice - Chair

Janet explained the Chair Pro Tem’s duties ahead of a meeting.

John said that there was ad coming up next week for the Boards and Commissions, which
will have the P&Z included for the open position since Ken has moved to Minnesota.

Further discussion ensued about the open position.

Jade nominated Jay as Pro Tem, Marina seconded the nomination, it was unanimous,
and Jay was approved as the Pro Tem.

Staff Update

Janet said that Eastwood Annexation will be coming up at the next Board meeting. She
said that there were some letters from the public but that there were no public comments
at the meetings. Janet said that the Board voted unanimously to approve the application.

Further discussion ensued about the application and the entrance to Carbondale.

Janet said that she spent time with John Colson from the Sopris Sun about developments
and the Comprehensive Plan, which was in the paper.

Janet said that she has been working on a Story Map with Nathan Baier from Roaring
Fork Geospatial. She explained that it tells a story about larger projects both under
construction and in the land use process, which is on the Town’s website. She said that
there are links to the land use applications as well.

Further discussion ensued about previous rezonings.

Janet said that if anyone has any suggestions or changes to let her know and that she
wants to keep the Story Map really simple and user friendly. She said that she doesn’t
want it to be a marketing tool but just a factual tour of Carbondale.

John reminded the Commission about ex-parte communication.

Janet said that we could have a refresher training with Mark Hamilton, the Town Attorney.
Janet said that the Comp Plan is still in the budget for next year.

Janet said that we are so busy with inquiries and questions.

4|Page



11/19/20

Janet said that there are some big applications coming in.

Nicholas asked what the standard window for an applicant currently wanting to go through
the P&Z.

Janet said typically it could be three or four months depending on how many agreements
there are and how complete the application is. She said that she likes to give people a
cushion so if it doesn’t go as planned that we can get issues resolved.

Further discussion ensued about the timeline of applications.
John said that a new Ordinance Officer is starting and that we are really busy.

Mary said that the Building Department is staying busy too with a timeline of ten to twelve
weeks for the processing of a new home. She said that it changes by the day.

Commissioner Comments

Erica showed off her new adorable puppy.

Marina asked if the Planning Department was hiring.

Janet said no that we stay lean and mean with the budget we have.
John said that there are other duties as assigned.

Jeff said that he watches all of the real estate transactions and that the second half of
2020 compared to the last three years is staggering.

Jeff said that the Town is going to break ground on more amenities at Red Hill on
Monday and that GarCo was awarded a grant, which will go to more work on the
trailhead as well as the River Front Park. He said that AVLT is currently under contract
to purchase Coffman Ranch on Catherine Store Road, which is 140 acres. He said that
they are trying to turn the ranch into a community asset.

Motion to Adjourn

A motion was made by Marina to adjourn. Nicholas seconded the motion, and the meeting
was adjourned at 8:10 p.m.

5|Page



RESOLUTION NO. 8
SERIES OF 2020

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION OF THE TOWN
OF CARBONDALE, COLORADO, APPROVING A MINOR SITE PLAN REVIEW AND
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR PROPERTY LOCATED IN THE TOWN OF
CARBONDALE, COLORADO

WHEREAS, Damien Webster and Desiree Rothchild (“Applicants”) requested
approval of a Minor Site Plan Review and Conditional Use Permit to allow an Accessory
Dwelling Unit to be constructed in the basement of a single family dwelling located at
2010 Eastbank Point, Carbondale, Colorado (Lot 2 of the Thompson-Ice Subdivision
Amended Plat).

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the Town of Carbondale
reviewed this application during a Public Hearing on December 10, 2020 and approved
said application on the terms and conditions set forth below;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING
COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF CARBONDALE, COLORADO, that the Minor Site
Plan Review and Conditional Use Permit are hereby approved, subject to the following
conditions and findings:

Conditions of Approval

1. The Accessory Dwelling Unit shall not have separate water or sewer service.
2. All other representations of the Applicant in written submittals to the Town or in
public hearings concerning this project shall also be binding as conditions of

approval.

3. The Applicant shall also pay and reimburse the town for all other applicable
professional and staff fees pursuant to the Carbondale Municipal Code.

4. The applicant shall apply for and receive a building permit as required.

Findings for Approval - Site Plan Review

1. The site plan is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

2. The site plan is consistent with any previously approved subdivision plat, planned
unit development, or any other precedent plan or land use approval as
applicable.



Carbondale Planning & Zoning Commission
Resolution 2020-8

2010 Eastbank Point

Page 2 of 2

3. The site plan complies with all applicable development and design standards set
forth in this Code

4. Traffic generated by the proposed development will be adequately served by
existing streets within Carbondale.

Conditional Use Permit

1. The site, building(s), and use meet all criteria specified for the use and all
applicable regulations and development standards as specified in this Code and
for the zone district in which the use is located.

2. The proposed use is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

3. The proposed use is planned in a manner that will minimize adverse impacts on

the traffic in the neighborhood or surrounding uses; and

4. The proposed use is compatible with adjacent uses in terms of scale and site
design.

INTRODUCED, READ, AND PASSED THIS day of , 2020.

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION OF
TOWN OF CARBONDALE

By:

Michael Durant
Chair



TOWN OF CARBONDALE
511 COLORADO AVENUE
CARBONDALE, CO 81623

Planning Commission Memorandum

Meeting Date: 12-10-20

TITLE: Carbondale Center Place — Major Site Plan Review, Subdivision
Exemption, Conditional Use Permits and Alternative Compliance

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Planning Department

ATTACHMENTS: Referral Agency Comments
- Building Official
- CDOT
- Fire District
- Tree Board
- Xcel Energy
Land Use Application

BACKGROUND

This is an application for Major Site Plan Review, Subdivision Exemption, Conditional
Use Permits and Alternative Compliance. The Commission is required to hold a public
hearing and recommend approval of the application, recommend approval with
conditions, or deny it. The Commission may also continue the public hearing.

The owner/applicant is Tom Siciliano of Stein Properties, LP. Jack Schrager of
Carbondale Center Place LLC is also an applicant.

The property is a 4.16 acre lot located north of Colorado Avenue, east of Highway 133,
and west of 12t Street. The Sopris Shopping Center is located on the west side of the
lot and the Sopris Self Storage facility is located on the east side of the lot.

In July of 2020, the Town approved an application to rezone the west side of the lot
(87,060 sq. ft.) to the Mixed-Use (MU) zone district and to rezone the east side of the lot
(93,742 sq. ft.) to the Commercial/Transitional (C/T) zone district. The rezoning was
contingent upon approval of a Major Site Plan Review and Subdivision. It was
acknowledged during that process that the zoning line established at that time may
have to shift during Subdivision Exemption.



The proposal is to demolish the Sopris Shopping Center and replace it with a mixed-use
building with 76 residential units and 10,370 sq. ft. of commercial space. This would be
on the portion of the lot zoned MU. The three existing self-storage buildings would
remain on the east side of the site and a new self-storage building would be constructed
just to the west of those buildings. This would be on the portion of the lot zoned C/T.

PROCESS

While this is one application for Major Site Plan Review, there would be two separate
lots with a distinctly different development on each lot. The development on the west
side of the parcel would be mixed-use with commercial and residential. It is zoned MU.
The development on the east side of the lot would be the self-storage facility. It is
zoned CT. Each type of development has its own development standards specific to
that development.

This Staff report will only focus on compliance with the UDC. It will first go through the
zoning and development parameters for the Mixed-Use development proposed on the
west side of the lot. The report will then go through the zoning and development
standards for the proposed Self-Storage Facility.

Other aspects of the development, i.e., subdivision, engineering, water rights, Highway
Access Plan, etc., will be explored at the next meeting.

DISCUSSION

Surrounding Uses and Zoning

North CRW and Industrial Summers Building/ET Plaza
South MU and CT 1201 Main and Braeburn Building
East CT Multifamily and Industrial

West PC Highway 133 and Commercial

Comprehensive Plan

The property is designated as “New Urban” on the Future Land Use Plan in the 2013
Comprehensive Plan. This designation allows for a flexible mix of retail, restaurants,
service commercial, lodging, offices, and multiple story mixed-use buildings which may
include residential upstairs. Uses should be transitioned appropriately to adjoining
uses.

Development should be urban with buildings close to the sidewalks/streets. Parking
should be in landscaped lots behind the buildings or in courtyards. Site design should
provide safe connections to the buildings for pedestrians and cyclists.



Building facades and rooflines should be broken-up to avoid monotony and box-like
structures. There should be architectural elements facing the streets.

SUBDIVISION EXEMPTION
The proposal is to subdivide the 4.16 acre parcel into the following lots:

Lot 1 (westerly lot) — 87,031 sq. ft. or 1.998 acres

Lot 2 (easterly lot) — 93,771 sq. ft. or 2.153 acres
The size and dimensions of the lots are in compliance with the UDC. Utilities are
available to each lot. Each lot has adequate access. If this project is approved, a
Subdivision Improvements Agreement will need to be approved by the Board of
Trustees.

MIXED-USE LOT — COMPLIANCE WITH THE UDC

The development on this lot would be broken up into two buildings. The north building
has 48 residential units on the 13!, 2"% and 3™ floors.

The southern building has 10,370 sq. ft. of commercial space, a leasing office, and a

gym on the first floor. There are 28 residential units on the second and third floor. The
commercial space will be separated into 1500 sq. ft. spaces to attract small businesses.

There would be 64 efficiency units and 12 two-bedroom units in the two buildings. The

efficiency units range from 415 sq. ft. to 725 sq. ft. The two-bedroom units range from

975 sq. ft. to 1,576 sq. ft. There are six types of efficiency units and five different types

of two-bedroom units. All of the units would be rentals.

The parking is mainly located behind the building with some parking between the
buildings.

Mixed Use (MU) Zone District
Below is the purpose section of the MU zone district:

The purpose of the Mixed-Use District is intended to foster compact, mixed-use
development patterns that provide people with the opportunity to live, work,
recreate, and shop in a pedestrian-friendly environment. The Mixed-Use District
is intended to provide multimodal access to and from Downtown and the Rio
Grande Trail, encourage both a vertical and horizontal mix of land uses, and
provide for an interesting and walkable environment through tailored building



design and streetscape standards that address features such as building mass
and placement, building entries, and windows/transparency.

Allowed Uses

Mixed-Use Zone District

Multifamily dwellings are permitted uses.

Residential units on the ground floor require a conditional use permit
Offices, business and professional services are permitted uses.
General retail, 10,000 sq. ft. or less is a permitted use.

General retail, over 10,000 sq. ft. requires a special use permit.

YVVYYVYYV

The commercial area is just over 10,000 sq. ft. It is unknown at this time what type of
uses will go into the space. This was not noticed as a Special Use Permit so this may
require some discussion.

Lot Area

The lot is 87,031 sq. ft. The UDC requires 2,500 sq. ft. This is in compliance with the
UDC.

Setbacks
The required and proposed setbacks are as follows:
Required Proposed

Front — min/max 0 ft./10 ft. South Building 3.3 ft. to 4.5 ft.
North Building 5 ft. to 48 ft.

Side 0 ft. 25 ft. on north side
7 ft. on south side

Rear 0 ft. 65+ ft.

Lot Area per Dwelling Unit

The UDC requires a certain amount of lot area per dwelling unit. The calculation is as
follows:

64 efficiency unit x 1050 sq. ft. = 67,200 sq. ft.
12 two-bedroom x 1650 sq. ft. = 19,800 sq. ft

Lot Area Required 87,000 sq. ft.



Lot Area Provided = 87,031 sq. ft.

Building Height

The proposed building height for the south building is 34 ft. The north building would
be 33 ft. in height. The allowed building height is 35 ft. in the MU zone district. There
are allowances for parapets and sloped roofs.

Lot Coverage

The UDC allows a maximum of 90% lot coverage in the MU zone district, or 78,328 sq.
ft. The total proposed impervious surface is 65,244 sq. ft.

The code requires that 10% of the lot be landscaped or 8,703 sq. ft. The proposal is for
21,787 sq. ft. of landscape.

Common Open Space

UDC Section 5.3.3. requires 15% of common open space for developments in the MU
zone district. In this case, 13,055 sq. ft. would be required. The plan shows 21,787 sq.
ft. is provided.

The common open space would be separated into two areas so that each building has
an open space adjacent to the building. The common open space adjacent to the north
building has an outdoor BBQ and seating area with an open green area.

The southern building has a concrete plaza which may be used by the commercial area
for outdoor dining and a 743 sq. ft. of active play area for children. The code requires
400 sq. ft. of play area so this exceeds the requirement.

The Common Open Space must reflect the following standards:

Area shall be located to be readily accessible and useable by residents
throughout the development.

Facilities for active or passive recreation

Passive recreation such as picnicking and trails

Active recreational areas

Formal plantings, public art, and gardens, i.e., formally planned and regularly

maintained open areas that include arranged plantings, gardens, gazebos,
fountains, sculpture, and other forms of public art



Squares, plazas, and parks

Outdoor gathering spaces with amenities such as benches, water features,
drinking fountains, planters, public art, trash receptacles, etc.

Section 5.3.3.F. regulates use of common open space. This section states that outdoor
dining areas are encouraged within plazas and along the perimeter of open spaces so
the UDC allows the use of the common open space for outdoor dining.

It appears that the proposed common open space has greatly improved since the
conceptual plan was reviewed during the zoning process.

Streetscape

The UDC requires a 10 ft. wide landscape strip along Highway 133. As has been
previously discussed with other applications, there is a conflict between that regulation
and the requirement for a maximum 10 ft. setback in the MU zone district. As a result,
the application includes a request for alternative compliance from this requirement to
provide a landscape strip in some areas which is not 10 ft. in width.

The UDC requires a 5 ft. wide landscape strip along Colorado Avenue. A 9 ft. wide
landscape strip is provided.

The application indicates that the number of required street trees is not in compliance
with the UDC. Page 10 of the narrative indicates there are significant deep and shallow
utilities which prevent them from planting trees in front of the south building. Instead,
they indicated they plan a perennial and shrub bed along the fagade of the building.

The Tree Board reviewed the application. Their comments are attached. These
comments have been provided to the landscape architect.

Parking Lot Landscaping

The UC requires a landscape island or rain garden every 12 parking spaces. The island
or garden must be a minimum of 6 ft. in width and contain a minimum of 75 sq. ft. This
has been provided.

The UDC requires a tree in the parking lot area for every 12 parking spaces or 9 trees in
this case. Eleven (11) trees have been provided.

Section 5.4.3.C.6 requires a 5 ft. wide landscape area between the parking lot and the
rear lot line. The application includes a request for alternative compliance to allow a
landscape strip that ranges from 2.4 ft. and 4.3 ft. The narrative explains that this
allows a larger common open space adjacent to the mixed-use buildings. It also notes
that the landscape strip abuts the west side of the self-storage building.



The UDC requires that all trees be 2.5” caliper and that shrubs be a minimum size of 5
gallons. This is in compliance.

Screening

There are two trash and recycling areas in the parking lot. They both are enclosed.
The plans do not show whether there is mechanical equipment on the roof. If so, the
equipment will need to be screened as provided in the UDC. This would be checked at

the time of building permit.

Transportation and Connectivity (Section 5.5)

The UDC requires that a network of pedestrian walkways with a minimum width of five
feet be provided on the site.

There are two 5 ft. wide sidewalks on either side of the driveway entering from Highway
133. There is a 6 ft. side sidewalk along Colorado.

Internal sidewalks along the parking area and adjacent to the east side of the buildings
have been provided.

There are no pedestrian walkways in the parking lot but the parking area is very linear
so it may not be necessary. People will have to cross the parking lot to get to the trash
enclosures. These areas should have some lighting.

Parking (UDC Section 5.8)

The UDC requires off-street parking as follows:

Residential
64 efficiency units x 1.25 =80
12 two-bedroom units x1.75=21
Total required 101 spaces
Commercial

10,370 sq. ft. divided by 300 sq. ft. = 34.57 or 35 spaces
101 and 35 results in a total of 136 required parking spaces.
Section 5.8.4.D.1 allows all uses in the MU zone district to be eligible for a 15%

reduction in required parking. In this case, the required parking would be reduced as
follows:



136 x .15 = 20 space reduction in required parking
UDC Section 5.8.4.D.2. also states a 15% reduction for the multifamily residential
dwellings may be allowed if the development is within 300 ft. of a transit stop. There is
the bus stop located on Main Street on the 1201 Main Street property. That would
reduce the required parking as follows:
101 x .15 = 15 space reduction in required parking
Total calculation with allowed reductions:
136 Total required
20 MU reduction
15 Transit stop reduction
101 parking spaces required.

The site plan shows 104 off-street parking spaces provided.

The UDC would require one 10 ft. x 25 ft. off-street loading space. The parking plan
does not address this.

UDC Section 5.8.7. requires one bike parking space for every three vehicle parking
spaces. In this case, 33 bike spaces are required. The proposal is for 34 bike parking
spaces located on the north side, middle and south side of the site.

It should be noted that commercial buildings that are more than 1,000 sq. ft. are
required to provide a shower facility.

The application does not appear to address snow storage. This should be clarified.

Community Housing

UDC Section 5.11 requires that 20% of the residential units be deed restricted as
affordable housing units. Based on 76 units, 15 units will need to be deed restricted.

A more detailed housing mitigation plan should be submitted which shows the location
and type of units being deed restricted. It should also show the category of each unit.

The deed restricted units should be provided in each building rather than concentrating
them all in one building.

Solar Access (Section 5.12)

This property is in Zone Il of the Solar Access zone. There are no restrictions.



Site and Building Design

Section 5.7.2.C. states that in the case of mixed-use buildings that the site and building
design requirements in Section 5.6 (residential) and Section 5.7 (commercial) shall both

apply.

Section 5.6 — Residential Site and Building Design

The UDC suggests providing a mix of housing types. There would be 64 efficiency units
and 12 two-bedroom units in the two buildings. This was discussed during the Board of
Trustees review of the rezon